TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, September 28, 2016
6:00 PM
Councit Chambers

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

5.a Public: 09/07/2016
TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U.pdf

5.b Public: 09/14/2016
TC Minutes 091416-U.docx

AGENDA OVERVIEW

PUBLIC HEARINGS

CONSENT AGENDA

8.a  Accept donations to the Town of Hooksett for the 2016 Hooksett Employee Appreciation

Picnic per RSA 31:95-b llif (b} and RSA 31:85-e |l
2016 Employee Picnic Donations.pdf

8.b  Donation of an air hockey game, various arts and craft items and tennis rackets and balls
valued at $425.00 to the Town of Hooksett, for the Parks Recreation and Cemetery Division, Fun
in the Sun Camp by David Dwyer of Hooksett, under RSA 31:95-e il, acceptance of gifts of less

than $5,000.
Staff Report - Donation of Various Materials for Town of Hooksett.pdf

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




10. PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

11. NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

12. SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

13. 15 MINUTE RECESS

14. OLD BUSINESS

14.a Budget Reviews:
Library Tab 15
Wastewater Tab16

15. NEW BUSINESS

15.a Purchase of 100" steel walking floor trailer for Recycling and Transfer Division.
Staff Report - purchase of 100 yard steel walking floor.pdf

M & T Solutions Trailer Bid.pdf

Spector Trailer Bid.pdf

15.h 2016 Halloween Trick-or-Treat - date & time
2016 Halloween TOT.pdf

15.c Employee Appreciation Letter
2016 Letter - Emplovee Appreciation. pdf

16. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

17. PUBLIC INPUT

18. NON-PUBLIC SESSION

18.a NHRSA91-A:3 Il (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or
the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her,

18b NH RSA 91-A:3 Il (¢) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

19. ADJOURNMENT

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




Public Input

1. Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council Meeting. Time
will be divided equally among those wishing to speak, however,no person will be allowed
to speak for more than 5 minutes.

2. No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any
meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal or
derogatory about any other person.

3. Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must be
addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town Administrator,
wilt determine if the question can be answered at that time. Questions cannot be directed
to an individual Councilor and must not be personal in nature. Issues raised during Public
Input, which cannot be resolved or answered at that time, or which require additional
discussion or research, will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible
for researching and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair reserves the
right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to deliberation.

4. Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a subsequent
meeting.

5. No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the Chair.
Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted during Public Input.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.




T S S S S g g Sy
ND OO S NN W N~ OND S0 ] N LA s LN e

b MR NI
B BN ke O

[N S R S
S0 -1 O\ Lh

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT
Budget Meeting

Hooksett Town Hall
(35 Main Street, 1% floor room 105 - Chambers)

Wednesday, September 7, 2016

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.

ROLL CALL #1

In attendance: Councilors John Giotas, Adam Jennings, Robert Duhaime, Marc Miville,
David Ross and Chairman Sullivan. Excused: Councilors Donald Winterton, Timothy
Tsantoulis, and James Levesque.

V.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

BUDGET OVERVIEW

Dr. Dean Shankle, Town Administrator, provided a 2017-18 budget overview to include:

The Town Administrator's recommendation of $15,965,556, excluding
Wastewater, is an increase of $567,849, or four percent, from the current year
budget.

Contractual items outside of the Administrator’s control are more than three
percent of that increase and are as follows: $300,000 for Reconstruction of
Roads Capital Project that was approved by the voters to be included in the
budget for the next four years and $140,000 for increases in the employer share
of New Hampshire Retirement.

Other non-contractual items that increased are property liability insurance for
$24,000, and employee health insurance which is budgeted for at six percent
costing an estimated $108,000. This year we did change the way we budget for
vacant positions in the larger departments. For Police, Fire-Rescue and DPW,
vacant positions are budgeted at a 2-person plan and all other departments are
budgeted at a family plan. This change reduced the estimated increase by
$82,000; therefore, the budget for health insurance only increased by
approximately $26,000.

The recommendation includes no new full-time and one new parf-time employee
for the library (123 full-time employees — 38 part-time employees).

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U




48
49
50
51
52
53
54
35
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
39
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

Councilor Ross asked if the Reconstruction Capital Project would have a tax impact this
year. Christine Soucie, Finance Director, said the $300,000 would not impact the tax
rate and that the tax impact would be the same this year as it was last year.

V. BUDGET REVIEWS

e Conservation Commission Tab 14

Steve Couture, Chairman of the Conservation Commission, came forward to request a
budget of $1,277. Councilor Miville asked about the $1,000 request for fraining and
dues. Mr. Couture said the NH Association of Conservation Commissions puts onh a
day long event that is applicable to new commission members and the Natural
Resources Scientists and Soil Scientists put on good training, and some are put on by
the Department of Environmental Resources, that help increase member knowledge.

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Miville, to accept and approve the
Conservation Commission’s FY 2017-18 budget request of $1,277. Motion passed
unanimously, 6-0.

¢ Cemetery Commission Tab 13

Mike Horne, Chairman of the Cemetery Commission, came forward. He thanked the
Councilors for their service. The departmental request totaled $2,640 and included
funds for maintenance at Head’s and Martin’s cemeteries, web base programs, and
minor supplies for burials. Town Administrator Shankle moved $1,800 from the
maintenance line to the DPW budget for pavement repair, and leaving a final budget
request of $841.

Councilor Ross moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to accept and approve the
Cemetery Commission’s FY 2017-18 budget request of $841. Motion passed
unanimously, 6-0.

» Budgef Committee Tab 11

The Budget Committee’s request was deferred to next week.

« Public Works Tab 8

Diane Boyce, DPW Director came forward and went through each section of her
department’s budget starting with Community Development, Planning and Engineering.

Any changes to the budget are contractual. Chairman Sullivan pointed out the $54,106
default budget amount which is $11,000+ less than the requested sum. Councilor
Miville asked about the Assistant Planner position. Director Boyce reminded the
Councilor that the Council had authorized replacing the planner position with an
Administrative Assistant position at $14.95 per hour plus overtime with a possible
increase of two percent after 6 months of employment for a tfotal annual salary of
approximately $31,000. Councilors discussed the savings from the full-time budget line
to include wages, FICA, and retirement.

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 080716-U




97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
169
110
111
L2
113
114
115
116
117
118
19
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144

Councilor Miville moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to reduce the CD full
time wage line by $21,300. Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

Planning Beard

Director Boyce indicated there was no change from last year's budget request of
$9,430.

Building Inspection

Councilor Jennings noted a drop in health insurance. Christine Soucie, Finance
Director, stated that was due to the employee share of the cost going up. Councilor
Ross asked why the training costs were up to $3,000 from $1,800. Director Boyce was
not sure and will get more information on that question.

Chairman Sullivan moved, second by Councilor Ross, to remove $1,000 from the
training & dues training line, pending more information from Director Boyce.
Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

Councilor Ross questioned the professional services line going up $2,000 since there is
now an engineer on staff. Director Boyce suggested vendor services are required for
things fike bed bug inspections, and the like, which are not under the purview of the
town engineer. Councilor Jennings noted zero activity in this area as of 6/30/16.
Director Boyce said “so far so good”. Director Soucie noted that those funds are used
for mosquito control when necessary. Dr. Shankle pointed out that with work being
done to address matters with the Firebird Motel, attorneys could recommend an outside
inspector to look at the issue so the budget line should probably be kept open and not
eliminated altogether. Chairman Sullivan said it makes sense to have it and asked if
motels get inspected by the state or the town, as restaurants are inspected by the state.
Councilor Ross noted that “professional services” is not yet part of the default budget.

Councilor Ross moved, second by Chairman Sullivan, to reduce the CEQ
professional services budget line by $1,500. Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

Zoning Board of Adjustments

Director Boyce noted a slight increase in the advertising and postage lines.

Highway Division

Diane Boyce said the only changes in this division are contractual items and a slight
increase in health insurance administration. Councilor Jennings noted a small increase
in the supply line, and Councilor Miville asked if uniforms were exchanged, cleaned and
returned every week. Director Boyce said a contract was signed a couple of years ago
for cleaning pants for 15 people at $15 a week. Councilor Miville asked if the Parks and
Recreation Director position was in this budget. Director Boyce said no. Chairman
Sullivan asked if the position was in the budget anywhere. Dr. Shankle said no, that it

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U




145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
i54
55
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193

would be presented as a warrant article which can be discussed now or when warrant
articles come up.

Councilor Miville moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to remove $175 for the
National Parks and Recreation Association member dues, and direct the Town
Administrator to leave a dollar balance in the budget line. Motion passed
unanimously, 6-0.

Counciior Miville asked Director Boyce to describe what the overtime is. Director Boyce

said the computations were for a minimum of 18 winter events for a full crew at eight
hours of overtime each, plus call-ins and union addition wages after 16 hours straight.

Road Maintenance

Director Boyce said a bit was added to the professional services line because the
sweeper truck is not deep enough so they had to call in a professional trapper and
added that to the budget. Chairman Sullivan asked if the stormwater permit was new.
Director Boyce said yes, over the last couple of years.

Councilor Duhaime suggested that the professional services line going from a FY 14-15
budget of $127,997 to a FY 17-18 budget of $40,000 was attributed to hiring a town
engineer. Director Boyce agreed. Councilor Jennings pointed out vehicle maintenance
going down from $120,000 to $106,000 to $100,000. Director Boyce said with the fwo
new trucks they are seeing fewer break downs

Councilor Ross questioned the increase in Road Salt and Sand because there was less
plowing done due to a less severe winter. Director Boyce said “we have a full bin [of
salt]’, and they are not using additives because it was clumping up. The Town
Administrator reduced the requested budget by $19,000. Councilor Miville asked if the
rental cost of $2,500 was for the bucket truck. Director Boyce said the budget was for
contracting with a tree company.

Councilor Ross noted an expense of $20,000 for plow edges and chains and asked why
skids and wheels were not used. Director Boyce said they go through a lot of edges
and chains. Councilor Miville asked how many plow edges does $20,000 buy. Director
Boyce said at least one for each of the vehicles and a spare; at least 20 a year. She
said once a chain breaks, it can't be used and there are three different sizes of blades.

Bridges/Street Lighting -- No particular comments were made.

Fieet

Director Boyce said the increase was due to new equipment requested for safety
reasons. Councilor Miville noted that the new equipment department request was
$11,500 and the Town Administrator reduced that amount to $1,000. He asked what
was being purchased. Director Boyce wasn't sure. Dr. Shankle said purchases were
made from this year's budget and included $1,000 in case anything was needed.

Building Maintenance

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U




194
195
166
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242

Chairman Sullivan asked if funds would be available for court expansion. Dr. Shankle
said “it depends on what we're going to do”. He said funds would be available for basic
maintenance and if more is done, can get reimbursed via their lease. Councilor
Duhaime pointed out the cost of a new furnace for the courthouse at $10,000.
Councilor Miville asked if custodial staff had received a raise. Dr. Shankle said non-
union part-timers get a raise. Courthouse and town hall staff got raises. Diane Boyce
said there has been a lot of turnover at the courthouse and, in response to Councilor
Miville, said the positions were being filled at the same rate.

Councilor Duhaime asked whether the $20,000 set aside for the windows and bathroom
upgrades in the Old Municipal Building was accurate. Director Boyce said it was an
estimate.

Chairman Sullivan mentioned that work on and in the Old Municipal Building has been
done and is moving in stages — when ceiling goes up, the second floor comes down.
They've talked about the ceiling, replacement of windows, the restroom facility, kitchen,
and other projects in between. Next steps include looking for grants and determining
how to break up the continuing work needing to be done. Director Boyce said the
building has an aging heating/air conditioning system.

Parks, Recreation, Cemeteries

Director Boyce said the water line was doubled. Councilor Ross noted that ground
supplies had gone up. Director Boyce said that funds are needed 1o gravel the road
and parking area at Petersbrook Park and repairs to the roadway into Donati Park.
Loam, sand, stone, and clay need to be purchased for all fields and fence repairs are
necessary at all parks.

Regarding HYAA (Hooksett Youth Athletic Association), Director Boyce said “we need
to decide how to manage and determine who is responsible for what". Councilor Ross
said there was not clear delineation. Chairman Sullivan agreed that the Council must
discuss the field responsibility of the town versus those activities that should be the
responsibility of HYAA. Dr. Shankle said that is part of the conversation when we talk
about a recreation director; typically that's who keeps track of those activities which are
very time-consuming given the number of fields. Councilor Duhaime said if not for the
HYAA, the town would probably have a recreation director. He said looking at the
$7,000 Parks and Recreation electric costs and $16,000 for Petershrook Park electric,
it's likely this will increase next year. Director Boyce said “yes” and there are four more
fields going into Petersbrook. She felt the responsibility for turning off the lights should
be the town’s. Chairman Sullivan acknowledged that no one is saying that HYAA is not
doing a good job. Dr. Shankle indicated that HYAA focuses on programs while the town
needs to focus on land. Councilor Miville suggested the matter be placed on a future
Council meeting agenda. Chairman Sullivan thought the Parks and Recreation
Advisory Commission could serve as the Council’s agent in talking with HYAA. Director
Boyce agreed and felt a group of people should be making this kind of decision.

There was discussion about a water slide. Chairman Sullivan said Frasier Park is also
a good area. Councilor Miville brought up paying for overtime for HYAA work, and

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U




243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
2353
254
2355
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
205
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290

asked it those costs shouldn’t be in the school budget. Director Boyce said the town
doesn’t charge the school either and the matter may be another requiring further
discussion.

Councilor Ross said there was a $2,000 difference between the departmental request
and the Town Administrator’s request and asked what will transfer to the default budget.
Director Boyce said they decided not to purchase golf carts and instead get port-a-
potties, and that the New Equipment line was reduced to $1.00 and recommends
developing a warrant article for Sand Pro.

Recycling and Transfer Division

Collection/Risposal

Director Boyce said most of the increases are contractual, and there was no decrease
from the current year budget. She said projected decreases in fuel and health
insurance costs covered the increase request for vehicle maintenance. Director Boyce
said the disposal fee is up to $2 a ton. Also, electronics, including tipping fees, are
going up. Director Boyce said it has been the worse year ever for vehicle maintenance.
Councilor Miville confirmed that those cost come out of the operating funds.

Chairman Sullivan suggested that any questions go to Dr. Shankle. The final vote on
the budget will take place at the Council's September 21% meeting.

o Tax Collector—Tab 9

Dr. Shankle stated that the budget went down because of change in personnel. New
equipment went up a bit for the purchase of adjustable desks and there was an increase
in the preservation of tax records. Councilor Jennings asked if ergonomic desks might
garner some health insurance savings. Councilor Duhaime questioned the cost of four
phones at $1,500. Finance Director Soucie said it was voice over Ethernet and the fax
is a copper line.

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Ross, to accept and approve the
tax collector’s budget in the amount of $264,568. Motion passed unanimously, 6-
0. Councilor Jennings pointed out that this amount is less than the default budget and
less than last year's budget.

¢« Town Clerk and Election — Tab 10

Dr. Shankle noted that this budget always goes up and down depending on the number
of elections. In addition, funds have been included for records preservation where the
oldest, at-risk documents will be handied first. Councilor Jennings asked what they do
and noted that the Town Administrator lowered the budget line request from $3,170 to
$2,500. Christine Soucie said they provide microfiche and offer other options; copies
are sent to the state, and Dr. Shankle said the work will take a number of years; hence,
his smaller requested amount.

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 080716-U




291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339

Councilor Miville moved, second by Councilor Giotas, to accept and approve the
Town Clerk and Election budget in the amount of $29,348. Motion passed
unanimously, 6-0.

e Capital Lease & Debt  Tab 12

Chairman Sullivan moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to accept and approve
the Debt and Leases budget in the amount of $67,474. Motion passed
unanimously, 6-0.

e Finance Tabb

Dr. Shankle said he reduced overtime and telephone by $50 each based on actuals.
Finance Director Soucie noted that GASB compliance is needed this year at an
estimated cost of $5,000. Chairman Sullivan asked about the health insurance line
going from $40,856 to $31,091. Director Soucie said that is due to employees picking
up a larger share of the cost. Director Soucie also mentioned an increase in the
auditing services of $2,000 since the town's audit will be done by a new firm and the
cost is generally higher the first year. Chairman Sullivan confirmed that a change in
auditing firm is done every five years. Councilor Duhaime asked about the phone costs.
Director Soucie said the costs are all the same — one contract that is up for renewal in
2018. The price hasn't increased in 4.5 years and long distance is free.

Councilor Miville questioned the cost of $950 for an office chair. Director Soucie said it
was a good, supportive chair which is needed for employees, ergonomically.

Getting back to the phone lines, Chairman Sullivan noticed that the tax collector had
three lines for $1,500 and finance has four lines for $1,500. Director Soucie will double
check the figures.

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to accept and approve
the finance department budget of $233,235. Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

e Assessing Tab 3

In response to Councilor Jennings question on why there is an increase in professional
services, Dr. Shankle said they contracted with an assessor for commerciai property.
He said once LeAnne moves into the assessing position and they add a parttime
person, they can eliminate the contracted services. Councilor Miville said the contract is
in effect through next June and LeAnne will have graduated by that time. Dr. Shankle
said that LeAnne is doing more and more and they have heen using contracted services
jess but kept the funds in the budget in case it is needed. They will only spend what is
needed. Councilor Ross questioned the FY15-16 actual cost of professional services at
$16,731 and the current year request of $40,000. Chairman Sullivan said the line item
is the amount of the actual contract, and the contract amount is the default budget.
Councilor Miville noted that the new equipment budget was reduced by haif and asked if
one or two printers are to be purchased. Director Soucie said she thought the printer is
in this year’s budget.

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U

10




340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388

Councilor Duhaime moved, second by Chairman Sullivan, to reduce the new
equipment line in the assessing department to $300, and revisit if necessary.
Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

Councilor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Ross, to accept and approve the
assessing department budget of $179,131. Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

¢ Administration Tab 2

Dr. Shankle said that five percent of the administration budget is contractual. $13,000 is
needed to replace the server for Fire Rescue. He said there is an increase in
employment testing as they want to make sure that Fun in the Sun employees are
tested every year when they come back. Advertising is increased to advertise more
positions. In response to Councilor Ross on the software cost, Dr. Shankle said the
whole town must be kept upgraded. Director Soucie indicated that back-up servers are
costly but very necessary so that down time is limited if necessary. Dr. Shankle said the
Administration budget increased in total $42,273. The budget includes a five percent
increase in the wages in accordance with his employment contract as well as an
increase in the number of part time hours available. He said the federal government
has changed guidelines relative to overtime pay. Property liability insurance went up
from $241,000 to $265,000 and reflects the current rate of services. Also, Heritage
Commission increased by $3,000 based on the commission’s request. Finance Director
Soucie said the workmen’s compensation and property liability lines went up because of
the amount covered, not because of the rate. Councilor Ross noticed postage at
$6,000 but totaled $3,707 at the end of June 2016. Councilor Miville asked about
tablets. Dr. Shankle said if people want them, they'll get them. Dues to the Hooksett
and Manchester Chambers of Commerce was mentioned. Dr. Shankle said Joanne
goes to the Hooksett one and he goes to Manchester if the discussion is applicable to
Hooksett. Chairman Sullivan said councilors could go if interested. Dr. Shankle said
the problem is that they meet on the same day as council meeting dates every month.

Councilor Giotas moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to accept and approved
the Administration budget of $1,103,396. Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

V. OTHER
There was no vote taken on the public works budget. Dr. Shankle said he hopes to get
budget work done by September 21% since at the end of the month he is going to ICMA
so won't be here for the last meeting of the month, and neither will Director Soucie.
Councilor Miville brought up the cost of a pavilion and suggested it could be done for
less as the schoo! did for $150,000. Dr. Shankle said they did a barn raising and got a
lot of volunteer help. Chairman Sullivan thought the Parks and Recreation committee
might discuss and can be taken up later. Councilor Miville said it was part of the profile.

VI. DELIBERATION

VIl. ADJOURNMENT

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U

11




389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409

Councilor Miville moved, second by Councilor Ross, to adjourn the meeting at
8:49 p.m. Motion passed unanimously, 6-0.

NOTE: The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for
documents referred to in the minutes, reading file material, and/or ancillary documents
that the Town Council Chair has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council's
prior approval of the documents.

Respectfully submitted,

Suzanne Beaucheshe
Recording Clerk

TC Budget Meeting Minutes 090716-U

12




[
SND Q0 ] Oy Lh B W RS e

Lhthn U b e e B B P P L0 0 L) L ) W W N RN NDER NN N R == e bk e e et
M= S Woe OB WN — DO~ WU WN=— OO~ W — O AN 00 -] O L B e

TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES -- UNOFFICIAL
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, September 14, 2016
6:00 PM
Council Chambers

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.
2. ROLL CALL #1

In attendance: Councilors Donald Winterton, John Giotas, Timothy Tsantoulis, James
Levesque, Adam Jennings, Marc Miville, and Chairman James Sullivan. Councilor Robert
Duhaime arrived the meeting at 6:11 p.m.

Not In Attendance: Councilors David Ross.
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

5.a Public: 08/24/2016
TC Minutes 082420 16.pdf

Councilor Winterfon moved, second by Councifor Tsantoulis, to approve the August 24, 2016
public meeting minutes, as amended. Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.

5.b  Non-Public: 08/24/2016

Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Miville, to approve the August 24, 2016
non-public meeting minutes, as presented. Motion passed unanimously, 7-0.

6. AGENDA OVERVIEW
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS
8. CONSENT AGENDA
8.a  Acceptance of a donation from Judith A. Fortier in the amount of $25.00 to the Town of

Hooksett for Hooksett Fire-Rescue in memory of Albert Dionne per RSA 31:95-b il (b).
HFR DONATION FORTIER 091416.pdf

$25 Donation - A. Dionne, pdf

Councifor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Jennings, to approve the Consent Agenda,
as presenfed. Motion passed 7-0. 13

TC Minutes 091416-U




53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
6l
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
%6
97
98
99
100
101
102
103

9. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

On behalf of Town Administrator, Dr. Dean Shankle who was not in aftendance, Donna
Fitzpatrick stated that they have had some difficulty in uploading the Planning Board and
Zoning Board of Adjustment meetings so the videos may not be as readily available for
viewing. Other information provided includes:

« A new project coordinator has been hired. Nicholas Germaine has a background in
communications which is in line with the goals of the Council. He interned with the
Portsmouth Housing Authority. Mr. Germaine starts work next Monday and will be
attending the next Council meeting on September 215t

« The NH Municipal Association's Legistative Policy Conference will be held on
September 23" from 9:00 a.m. until noon. The conference will be held in Concord. She
asked for one volunteer Councilor to attend on behalf of the Council. Chairman Sullivan
asked any Councilor who is able and willing to attend to let Ms. Fitzpatrick know of their
interest.

e A letter from Michael Sorel dated August 251 was addressed to the Library Board of
Trustees and provided a 2016 progress report on the Sorel’s gift to the library. Donna
Fitzpatrick read the letter [attached].

[Councilor Robert Duhaime arrived the meeting at 6:11 p.m.]

+ Donna reminded everyone that Hooksett Old Home Day will be held on Saturday and
the Town Council Booth will have information on a number of town activities.

Chairman Sullivan thanked the fire and police departments for the great video in
remembrance of September 11" 2001 that is available at the Safety Center where a piece of
the New York tower has been placed.

10. PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES

There was no public input provided.
11. NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS
11.a Appointment - Marika Yakubovich to PParks & Recreation Advisory Board

MarikaYakubovichApp.pdf
BOARDS COMMITTEES Open July 2016.pdf

Councifor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Giotas, to appoint Marika Yakubovich who
came and addressed the Board at its last meeting, to the Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board. Motion passed unanimousty, 8-0.

12. SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS
12.a David Campbell, Attorney for Manchester, Sand & Gravel - Lehoux Drive Right-of-Way

LEHOUX ROW.pdf
PROPOSED+LANGUAGE+FORADEED (.pdf

TC Minutes 091416-U

14




104
105
106
107
108
109
110
11
112
[13
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153

David Campbell, Attorney for Manchester Sand and Gravel, came forward with Ron
Corriveau and Eric Stevenson.

Attorney Campbell provided slides proposing deeding property to the town for a 60-foot wide
parcel of land running from the end of Lehoux Drive to the southern boundary of land owned
by CM! Leading Corporation (known as Map 18, Lot 7). He pointed out the lot which abuts
land owned by Manchester Sand and Gravel that they do not want to tie a road to until the
quarry has ceased, some 75 years down the road. Sunset Rock has an easement over the
lot and they feel the town would be better served to have the right-of-way as fong as their
rights are preserved. The Sewer Commission could use the extra land in the interim years.
Attorney Campbell said if the Town Council approves, they will take draft restrictions and
work with the Town Attorney and Administrator and get back to the Council.

Councilor Winterton said he was present at the Sewer Commission meeting when Attorney
Campbell presented this proposal to the commissioners. He said the Sewer Commissioners
think this should be approved. Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Duhaime, to
direct the Town Administrator fo work with the Town Atforney and Attorney Campbell to
propose a resolution and bring back to the Council for final approval.

Councilor Miville asked if the extension is zoned industrial and whether it was part of the
feasibility study. Attorney Campbell said it is zoned as a multi-use district, not residential,
and that it was not part of the feasibility study. Councilor Winterton commented that there is
potential in the strip for solar panels which could be something to talk about given that the
Sewer Commission’s largest expense is the cost of energy. Chairman Sullivan noted that the
lot was deeded to the Sewer Commission originally. Attorney Campbell said it is in the hands
of the Council and he did not believe a public hearing is required; it will be a donation to the
town. A vote on the molion was called and passed unanimously, 8-0.

13. 15 MINUTE RECESS
14. OLD BUSINESS
14.a Budget Reviews:

Capital Improvement & Long Term Budgeting Plans -- Tab 22

Finance Director, Christine Soucie, provided a draft Capital Improvement Plan for FY ending
2018-2023 and included a Long-Term Budget Plan for FY ending 2018-2023. Councilor
Winterton asked if a vote was necessary to dissolve the $62,118 balance remaining in the
Feasibility Study for the Southern Leg of the Parkway reserve fund. Director Soucie said
dissolving funds must be handled via a warrant articie. Chairman Sullivan asked is the
purpose of the fund could be renamed and funds reapplied to another CIP program. Director
Soucie said it was possible but more involved and would take 3/5 of the community to change
it.

In response to Councilor Miville regarding the two separate reports, Director Soucie said they
split items to more truly reflect a capital project versus a long-term planning project.
Chairman Sullivan suggested having someone look into a third site for the fire station.
Councilor Levesgue said the area behind Market Basket is all ledge. Councilor Miville in
referencing Car #4, said “we've had issues with vehicles with the Fire Department’.

TC Minutes 091416-U

15




154
155
156
157
158
159
160
16l
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202

Councilor Winterton said discussion would be more appropriate later since CIP was being
discussed now.

Director Soucie said the document she distributed was a planning tool and does not need to
be approved by the Council.

Family Services - Tab 4

Joy Buzzle came forward to go over the Family Services Department budget. She said there
was a small decrease in the postage line. The welfare line request was reduced by $25,000
not because of needs but because of very strong community organizations, such as the
Salvation Army, who help to offset the cost. The Salvation Army raised $80,000 over the last
couple of years. Ms. Buzzle said there was a new line in the budget, Bus Transportation.
She said the town gets calls every week from folks that need rides to their doctor, or to pick
up food and medicine. A study was done a few years ago and there is still a huge need for
public transportation. She and Joanne Duffy, Town Planner, have been working as part of a
Regional Transportation Committee and the town has an opportunity to take advantage of a
shuttle service which would come to town twice a week and is offered by a federal grant
provided through the NH Department of Transportation. The 14 passenger van would come
to Hooksett on Tuesdays and Thursdays. The Manchester Transit Authority would set up the
door-to-door pick ups at no cost to the residents. Eighty percent of the $25,000 cost is
reimburseable. Councilor Winterton noted that $5,000 per year amounts to $100 a week, and
$50 a day which is cheaper than a taxi ride across town. He asked if residents had to meet
any financial requirements to participate in the program. Ms. Buzzle said “no and there was
no restriction on where riders we're going”. Councilor Miville said he was recently speaking
with an elderly at the pool who expressed the need for such a service. He indicated that
many elderly live on Lindsay Road that is very hilly and hard for residents to get down the hill.
A bus coming directly to the house will be very helpful for many. Finance Director Soucie
said the Council could only budget for one year, funds cannot be obligated for a second year.
She suggested funding from this fiscal year if funds are available. Ms. Buzzle will talk with
Ms. Soucie and Dr. Shankle about that possibility.

Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Miville, to approve the Family Services FY
17-18 department budget of $193,587. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

Police--Tab 7

Police Chief Bartlett stated that two full time positions were included in the budget adding
$194,000 to the salary line. He said most of the other lines are either level or have gone
down, including the fuel line. The Chief said that last year they were purchasing fuel from
DOT at $2.67 a gallon while the retail price ranged from $1.63 to $1.70 on average. The PD
used 21,066 for a total cost of $46,880.83 and he feels the fuel line at $50,000 is adequate in
case fuel costs rise a little.

Councilor Winterton noted that $67,000 of the $80,000 increase in the NH retirement line is
outside of the Town Administrator's and Police Chief's control so the net impact for hiring two
full time employees is only $13,000. Director Soucie said savings can be attributed to
vacancy throughout the year and the way health insurance is funded. She said the town use
to use the family plan for all vacancies but now use the two person plan. Councilor Duhaime

TC Minutes 081416-U

16




203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252

asked how the [police] academy is paid. Chief Bartlett said from the salary line; it is funded
out of the selection process line, not under education.

Councifor Winterton moved, second by Councifor Jennings, fo approve the FPolice
Department budget of $4,472,240.

Councilor Miville asked about the selection process expense. Chief Bartlett said funds in this
budget line are expended for the purchase of written exams which cost $100 apiece. Other
expenses in that category include advertising. Councilor Miville questioned the expense of
miscellaneous professional services. Chief Bartlett said those services include state police
terminals used for license checks. Professional services are used for blood specimens,
medical expenses for evidence gathering, court transcripts to County Attorney, bleeds in car
clean-ups, the 911 system, secure shredding, Trans Union for investigative work, and any
other such services as required.

Councilor Levesque asked about repairs to firearms. Chief Bartlett said they bought brand
new weapons for the Drug Task Force. New weapons would most likely come under the
equipment budget. The Chief said officers must qualify for “"use of force” training and
defensive tactics. A software program has training modules on it.

Councilor Miville noted that vehicle repair has gone down slightly. The Chief said a lot of the
repairs have come out of extended warranty. Councilor Miville said the purchase of two
vehicles has helped to reduce maintenance costs. Councilor Miville asked about the camera
purchases. Chief Bartlett said digital cameras are issued to every officer and they cost about
$100 apiece and are crucial for documenting evidence.

In response to Councilor Miville, Chief Bartlett noted that $9,800 was included for the
purchase of tactical active shooter ballistic vests that should not have been included since
gight vests were purchased last year. The Chief said that vests have to be replaced every
five years.

Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Mivifle, to amend the earfier motion and
approve the FY 17-18 Police Department budget of $4,462,440. Motion passed
unanimously, 8-0. Director Soucie said $9,800 will be deducted from the Default Budget line
as well.

Councilor Jennings stated that the budget needed an additional adjustment to the
photography line. Chief Bartlett and Director Soucie stated that $1,100 in photography was
moved to the new equipment line. Councilor Miville mentioned the cost of dispatch chairs at
$1,500, $920 for firearms, and $78,000 for two vehicles. Chief Bartlett said with the vacancy
of command staff, he is looking to reorganize the command structure and may change a
patrol lieutenant to a police lieutenant temporarily.

There was discussion about radioc communications that was lost fo lightning some time in
2014. CIP had been building up and they got insurance money to purchase radios for the
cruisers. The chief said that a radio system’s life expectancy is about fen years. After that,
parts are no longer made or available so the system cannot be repaired. In 2024 and 2026 a
replacement will be needed at a cost of one-half million dollars. The most prudent way to get
the necessary funds is building the CIP. The current CIP balance is $86,850.

TC Minutes 091416-U

17




253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302

Fire-Rescue -- Tab 8

Fire Chief Burkush came forward along with Captain Steve Colburn who explained that their
24(7 operation cannot be staffed without overtime which they prefer to call “replacement”.
Per Article 15 of the May 2015 Town Meeting, the overtime line was reduced by one
employee, or $72,454. A major issue has been vehicle maintenance with expenses of
$89,295.79 as of June 30, 2016.

Chairman Sullivan noted that the Town Administrator had reduced the department request in
the overtime line. Chief Burkush said when a firefighter position was filled there was
discussion with reducing the overtime, which had been reduced twice in the past. Director
Soucie said both firefighter positions were moved out of the operations fund and into the
ambulance fund during the same year the town approved the overtime reduction. Councilor
Winterton is concerned that the Warrant Article indicated that by adding the position, there
would be no tax impact because overtime wages would be reduced for one full time officer.
Chairman Sullivan suggested that the Council may have been too optimistic of what voters
were told. He said he would be inclined to support an increase in that budget line.

Councilor Winterton went over the difference in coverage from six full-time or seven full-time
employees. Chief Burkush said every department struggles and running seven full-time
employees is more efficient. Councilor Winterton asked why $76,850 was moved for
dispatch cost o the Ambulance Fund. Chief Burkush said he would be happy with moving
half of the funds back. Councilor Winterton felt moving at least half back into overtime would
make sense since the ambulance line has the potential to increase revenue. Director Soucie
said the Town Administrator moved half of the dispatch cost to ambulance. In response to
guestions, Chief Burkush said:

o In July and August, most people take vacations; hunting season is also a busy time.
After summer, the average cost goes down around $4,000 a week; $16,000 a month.

« Eliminating the Deputy Chief position, and hiring a firefighter, would not change the
complement of the department. The budget is predicated on current staffing levels.

The Councilors continued to discuss staffing and various options for addressing the costs of
overtime. Councilor Winterton stated that changes in administration may provide savings of
$50,000 or $60,000 that could cover the cost of overtime. Chairman Sullivan said it may be
necessary to revisit the matter. Chief Burkush said people get hurt, things happen, and
overtime/replacement is fluid and should not be reduced. Councilor Tsantoulis
acknowledged that injuries cannot be predicted but planning for vacations can be controlied.
Councilor Duhaime said $300,000 spent in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016 is “a lot of
money” and it would be nice to see a drop going forward. Chief Burkush said it is the
department’s goal to continue to build up the EMS portion so they have a way to deal with
situations more economically. Chairman Sullivan said a vote will be taken when more
information is provided. Finance Director Soucie indicated that more information will be
provided at next week’s Council meeting.

Councilor Miville asked about the surviving spouse benefit. Director Soucie said it is stili in
effect. Councilor Miville asked about Car 4. Chief Burkush said it is not road worthy.
They've requested two vehicles; Dr. Shankle dropped it down to one. The Chief said that
three of the five vehicles in the fleet have over 100,000 miles, and he'd like to recycle
vehicles every two years. Councilor Levesque was surprised to hear of the 100,000 miles.

TC Minutes 091416-U

18




303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353

Chief Burkush said there has been an increase in calls, the town is busier, and Exit 10
continues to grow.

15. NEW BUSINESS
15.a Police Lieutenant Job Description

Police Lieutenant Job Description 2016.pdf
Police Lieutenant 2016.doc

15.b SafeStation Program on the opicid epidemic
Safe Station 091416, pdf

Chief Burkush said the Safe Station is an offering to residents who need a connection to
rehabilitation. It's voluntary and will be rolled-out in mid-October. Councilor Winterton
commended the Chief and staff for their efforts and said he supports them 100 percent.
Chief Burkush said the program that was held at the library was not well attended,
unfortunately.

Councitor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Levesque, to thank the Fire and Police
Departments for recognizing the opioid epidemic and working fowards increasing public
awareness and public safety. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

15.c  Award of RFP#16-12Petersbrook Athletic Field project

Staff Report 9-14-24-16 Contract Award RFPH#16-12 Peters Brook Athletic Field Construction.pdf
Bid Tabulation RFP 16-12 REBID Aug 24 16 Pelers Brook Athletic Fields.pdf

Additional reference list from david w white and son.pdf

Town Engineer and Assistant Public Works Director, Jim Donison, stated that three bids were
received for RFP#16-12 for the Peters Brook Athletic Fields construction. The contract is for
an lrrigation System, Lighiting Pole bases and electrical conduits and Loam and
establishment of grass for one full size soccer field, one reduced size soccer field, one
lacrosse field and three smaller soccer "nipper” fields. The three bidders were: David W.
White and Sons, Inc. of Bow, NH; Advanced Excavating and Paving, Inc. of Suncook; and
Alvin J. Coleman & Sons, Conway, NH. Mr. Donison recommends the bid be awarded to the
lowest bidder, David W. White and Sons, Inc. of Bow, NH with a total base bid amount of
$217,490 and total bid Alt. No. 1 amount of $220,140. Mr. Donison did a reference check
and everyone spoke highly of the company. Mr. Donison said the work will begin soon and
the company will do their best to get the fields seeded this fall and play time should not be
delayed. The funds for this contract will come from Parks & Recreation impact fees which
have an available balance amount of $217,900.

Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Jennings, fo award and approve a contract
with David W. White and Sons, Inc. of Bow for the amount of $217,490.00 which is the base
bid amount for RFP#16-12 Peters Brook Athletic Fields Construction Project. Roll Call No 2:
Councifor Duhaime-yes, Councilor Miville-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councifor Jennings-
yes, Councilor Giotas-yes, Councilor Winterton-yes, Councilor Tsantoulis-yes, Chairman
Sullivan-yes. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

Councilor Miville brought up a matter discussed during the last Council meeting regarding an
extra $10,000 being used fo pave more of Main Street. Mr. Donison said the extra cost for
drainage; i.e., additional catch basins because of curbing, were going to take up $8,000 so

TC Minutes 091416-U

19




354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403

the extra funds are not available for paving as was discussed. Councilor Miville asked if the
same number of trees would be planted. Mr. Donison said ten trees are scheduled to be
delivered next Wednesday. Councilor Mivilie asked if the street is narrowed because of the
curbing. Mr. Donison said the road was 26 or 28 feet but will be narrower, 24 feet, from curb
to curb. An additional four catch basins will reduce curbing to prevent water from entering
driveways. Councilor Levesque said that Mr. Lembo is very happy. Councilor Jennings
asked if a narrower road might have any traffic calming effect. Mr. Donison said it would
have some impact. He said the road stripping will be done on October 3.

15.d School Impact Fee Transfer
School Impact Fee Transfers Request.pdf

Councifor Jennings moved, second by Councilor Winterton, to transfer $91,274.36 from the
School Impact Fee Special Revenue fund to the Hookselt School District. Roll Call #3:
Councilor Giotas-yes, Councilor Jennings-yes, Councilor Miville-yes, Councifor Duhaime-yes,
Councilor Tsantoulis-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councifor Winterton-yes, Chairman
Sullian-yes. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

15.e Budget Transfers
Budget Transfer Request 2017-01.pdf

Councilor Winterton moved, second by Councilor Tsanftoulis, to approve the transfer of
$3,000 from the Parks & Recreation Full-Time Wages budget line, 001-450-4520-111-000, to
the Administration Old Home Day budget account line of 001-100-4589-800-006. Roll Calf
#4:  Councifor Jennings-yes, Councilor Levesque-yes, Councilor Duhaime-yes, Councilor
Miville-yes, Councilor Winterton-yes, Councilor Tsantoulis-yes, Councifor Giotas-yes, and
Chairman Sullivan-yes. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0. [attached]

16. SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

Councilor Levesque attended last night's Zoning Board of Adjustments meeting. There were
a number of items on the agenda. Supreme Industries wants to sell mulch which the
Planning Board has approved. There is a question about the roadway on Hackett Hill Road.
They are looking to provide access to their office and mulch sale area. A car wash was
approved to be held at Auto Wholesalers. A request to build a garage with not enough buffer
was considered and approved. Another matter included building a garage where the town
owned a right-of-way. The project didn't impact anything but Councilor Levesque asked who
would represent the town if the town is an abutter to a project. Chairman Sullivan said the
question is one for the Town Administrator. Eversource Energy requested a special
exception to permit the installation of a 120 foot tall telecommunications tower to be located
on CT&M Facility property.

Councilor Winterton said the Planning Board has been busy. Long Beach Development is
requesting a waiver to build on a lot, since the cistern is not yet in. SNHU has conducted a
road study and will do another in the fall when things are back to normal. There was
discussion on Supreme Industries’ request for a special exception. Harmony Place will be
coming back with new site plans. He said the Eversource tower is great since it will
electronically turn off sections of Hooksett if there is a power outage. Councilor Tsantoulis
said the purpose has to do more with truck and vehicle communication.

TC Minutes 091416-U

20




404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451

Councilor Winterton said pet owners will be pleased to know that a vet rehabilitation facility
will open on DW Highway. The TIFF is moving along and will be coming to the Planning
Board with a presentation. Meetings are going great. Councilor Miville asked if there were
any minutes of the TIFF meetings. Councilor Winterton said Katie Ambrose use to take the
minutes.

Councilor Miville said the Budget Committee met last Thursday. Jason Hyde was elected
Chair, and Chris Morneau, Vice Chair. The Budget Committee budget was approved and
another member was brought on the committee, Michael (7).

Councilor Jennings stated that the Parks and Recreation Commission will be meeting next
week. They are still down cne full-time and one part-time member.

Councilor Tsantoulis said he had nothing to report from the Board of Assessors and indicated
that the Youth Achievers Committee has had no activity of late. Councilor Winterton asked
all councilors to talk up the Youth Achiever award in general and in particular at the Old
Home Day Celebration.

in response to Councilor Miville, Donna Fitzpatrick said all councilors wiil be working the Old
Home Day Town Hall booth which will display some larger, ongoing projects; ie., the
roundabout, lilac bridge, SNHU and the Martins Ferry work. Information on the March
election will be available along with nomination forms and available committee positions, and
the Town Report.

17. PUBLIC INPUT
18. NON-PUBL.IC SESSION
19. ADJOURNMENT

Councilor Winterfon moved, second by Councifor Duhaime, to adjourn the meeting at 8:37
p.m. Motion passed unanimously, 8-0.

Note:

The town website may have attachments to these Town Council minutes for documents
referred to in the minutes, reading file material, and/or ancillary documents that the Town
Council Chair has signed as agent to expend as a result of the Council’s prior approval of the
documents.

Respectfully submitted,

Syzanne Beauchesne
Recording Clerk

TC Minutes 091416-U




Staff Report

2016 Hooksett Employee Appreciation Plenic Donations

Title:

September 28, 2016
Date: "

Background and Discussion of Issues

Annually the Town Council hosts an employee appreciation picnic. The
Council has approved this year's event to take place on Friday, October 7,
2016. Local businesses donate

» food items for a picnic luncheon and

- gift cards to be distributed o the employees at the event via a raffle.

The Town Council needs to accept the donations for the 2016 Hooksett
Employee Appreciation Picnic per RSA 31:95-b Ill (b} and RSA 31:95-e Il
The acceptance would not be for a specific amount as we will continue to
receive donations up to the event.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Recommend that the Town Council accept donations for the 2016 Hooksett
Employee Appreciation Picnic per RSA 31:95-b Ill (b) and RSA 31:95-e Ii.

Fiscal Impact

None.

Donna Fitzpalick, Adminisiralive Services Coordinator

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur

22




Staff Report

Dananon of Air Hockiy Game, Variaus Ans and Crafts and Tennts Rackels and BaTs for Town ol Hoo

Title:

September 28, 2016
Date: ~ "

Background and Discussion of Issues

David Dwyer, a resident in Town has donated an air hockey game, various
arts and craft materials and tennis rackets and tennis balls to the Town of
Hooksett, for the Parks, Recreation and Cemetery Division, Fun in the Sun
camp. The items are valued at $425.00 and should be accepted under RSA
31:9-3 Il, acceptance of gifts less than $5,000

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

| recommend that the Town Council accept the Donation from David Dwyer of an
air hockey game, various arts and craft materials and tennis rackets and balls to
the Town of Hooksett for the Parks, Recreation and Cemetery Division, Fun in the
Sun valued at $425.00 under RSA 31:9-3 |I, acceptance of gifts less than $5,000

Fiscal Impact

There is no fiscal impact

Prepared by: Diane Boyce, DPW Director

Town Administrator Recommendation

| concur.




Staff Report

Purchase of 100 yard steel walking trailer

Title:

September 28, 2016
Date: ¥

Background and Discussion of Issues

This year at the Town Meeting held on May 10th residents voted to approve
the purchase of a 100 yard steel walking floor trailer for the Recycling and
Transfer Division. The old trailer was used as a trade in to reduce the price.
the Town approved the $60,000 for the new trailer to come out of the Solid
Waste disposal account. The overall bids with the trade were as follows

Spector Manufacturing $63,000

M & T Solutions $60,685.75

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

| recommend that we accept the bid from M & T Solutions for the purchase of
a 100 yard steel walking trailer in the amount of $60,685.75 (to include frade
in)

Fiscal Impact

$60,000 will be coming from the Solid Waste Special Revenue Fund
$685.75 will be coming from the 2016-2017 budget

Prepared by: Diane Boyce, DPW Director

Town Administrator Recommendation

[ concur




14

090¥%-2L2¢€ (£09)
CHASC PIABCL

“Apaupouly

“OWZ ] I0J PAICUOY [ I-8 4Pl 2A0GE U0 BUToNI],

8615-699 (209 d Z015-92% (509) «d L880-1£7 (509) d
2okog ey oo VOSINGT 2ATLT 0PIUOTY OMEINUNIND San] NOTIUOT
90180 HN Heio0eH HN WEYRUIM 6.L050 HN WaEs
Py T9ATY 1590 012 1 3y py 98peT 7 P Ti240T L8
1BSCOH JO UMOL WEYPUIM, JO UMa], 2uiproy L8rsuzay

21NNy JBST T PR

SS2UISIIY Op UED 544 9d0Y PuB Uoos nok wioay SULieal oF pIemacy Yool a4 Tesodoxd Ino marasa
01 Wiy syt Bunyes 103 nek queyl of Lrunioddo sty 9B OF I PINOM AL "MO[G SIOURIFAT
JO 381 T PIPTIOUT JATY ] "SaiTed W00 J2i0 AUBl SE [[2M S JISN00H JO UMOL PUE WEBLPUIM,

JO UMOY, “{ORUWILLIB JO UMO], F8 YOS SaedIoTiiul 1110 0 sTeak jsud oyj Ul sminn

DIOS 3ABY 9A\ $,08 PIWE 33 30U SIIJET) 3811321 ia Suijeap pue ssauisng Suijedoal asem

3U3 Ul U3 3ABY 9/ CHASC PIAB(T ST SSOUISN] SUIOP ATam 3m SHIBT M3U 91 O $notasId ‘sagalk
M3y ' 20y Sutuuna puz dn ussq sey Yoty Lurdwoo paunioy AAsU € 81 T ‘SUOR oS I¥W
"00"005 2§ ST I918X) J001] 24T 02, 02dS £861 Jo apeag sy, “suongoroads anok 01 SWIoIUoo
ARJI0 INO TOTTEA], SvhJay 400 SUTHIEM 19918 ' 1 1~91 #P1q 107 [esodoad psjess g pssolous SAry |

TUISOUCD ABUT 3 WM O,

IS[IBL], MY 400 BUDIIEM 19938 T1-91# Q9 18

90160 EN ‘Hascoq

IOVRISTUTIIDY Wama], I aDIUBIS "7 Wea(T W0y
193138 UIEN GE

aawrey redioiuny HasiocH

owaw-wmm.«m..wu“g@ﬁEou.w@c‘rﬁwﬂich.oﬂz.moﬂﬁ.m_mmEm
£661-85080 HN ‘41120
2661 X094 Od

T3 “SuUonnios 18w

ariorie



9¢

hyo

DOQR- LT% pmonu: auoqdejal,

TIOS TONE § L] S COH0IS3 iy Ssowes ewa
ChoI- 36050 PN NI5AQ 4zemsin

2bhl Rog Qg SorY

TITSOOORG LA #mdeeo

Q,..:mimv -11:1¢

] Iﬁdd ampudiy
(ST % SWEN JULLY)

Yy OPR A

Juedy peZiOqily £q penrugly

“Aypne [EeSe] 1030 10
vopezodion “uuy ‘ucsrd AUE LM BOISNI00 10 uoyeTadoos ‘wonoun(uoy Bl 1o Apmof apet 101 S
DIG ST 2T Soaxfe JoyyIng IPPIY ‘sKEP () 15e9] T8 JOF Wiy o {[2YS o0pd pig puE SYEWNIOP PIq
9} UF POTFIUSP] SS2IPPE 94} 0F GO AATPP FPUH [[eys s0ud pig of) BT SPULISIOpUN PP
WD O 398 SUGKIPUOS PUB SWIAl S O} sealde pue smoneomyads s 15pplq 0 WOROUNSEL
o “syuswmoop Tesodoxd piq S1p peal seY 10pPIY JO JETq U0 aTs/aY 19 seoide pendisopun 5Y1

pasvgredac] SYIOM SGLd 91 YIM TR MST 1) 103 S18p AIRATRP
s onr e ns el T T

ST} S{UPSOEIIG ISRIE BPPIH “ormsdoEl] MaN ‘U0 PROY AT 18aMm O1T ‘SHIOM OTaRg
70 weunredaq 9 0 WV[TEn 3 WAIRP O cAep (71 SeY 15PPI SUL - FATVAL 40 AVIATTHA

BES NI T R

o P SINOP N KT Po)00 WG POSRCIUL_RTAC §

SpIO T 30Ug

HATIVEL WOLLOHE SATT VEIDES 6661 40 NI 5aviL FANTONI OL 307¥d

RN
(A1aaTiop BUrpnyenr) TR ], 35Ty 1007 BUD{EM 13915 {{) su0 0] 201

WH0H TVS040Hd arg

11-91# 01



x4

‘Apgexedas pasAIpPE 2 01 PADE ISY ) WOJ VAP JeT} suopesypads Aoy

(ap1s gomm AJroads jjim) “dre} 9pis 0] SPIG [ROMEA]
ISURD PUE Jead JUO ‘sieg Iopeaids
AeIny operg

] X B0I-0MT

wmges g91-78-0015 {1) sxssaid g91-8-0015 (1)
3007 Moy 1ausnd plepuelg
uorsuadsns 3O 189X PUR JNOY PRPURIS
Ao/

2128 w1 AT 1ee1 “QH'T

zu

A TR PUefof

<6 PIEpURIS

md Fury 8/5 ® U0 .9

Apoedeo 4000°Ts “dlT 004wy

AZX AT S YTITT WIRHOTIN

05T [9915 S PT X §T'8

SMWNIp precgine “pajoqd qnyg o101y i
WasAs SYRI] NZ/SY SV

s01s0(pe JoB(S OME/M IR I X, Y, 9]
AnoRdeo #000°5T TIRM 8/6 PUNOL g
Ie68 3urpue| 0} ST “Weeq-] 0]

' S143s VHSO

N0 PUE U1 SPIS JOAUIP 1G0T

PRSI0 JO ISNTY AOPTIM 8ol

dexm jny 29ned g1

2pISpeol paduny 100p WIes

SRS 7| U0 swelq-] . ¢

weduwn-1y

prpUElS

oN

2qW [BHONLS  §/E X £ X . F

SIayOee 7 X ¥ X %A

ﬁ&.ﬂﬁﬂgﬁo ..ON X S X nn.v X nrm

PRLA TN #00(°05 9883 71 % 001
SpLAZOT ¥ S

[ea1g

suondpy
FurEg

13980y "PAH
sy pAR
Jedmng
sdeg

Byg ydr]
SYITT
LIGLIIE) eIT],
avasy Furpury

“TH [29TA THIL]

g Jury
‘notsuadsng
5313,
SR
S[eoum

soNRIg
saTxY
S188RD)
iRA 32D
‘S1eppeT

pramIng
opedpR ],

-9 IS USSOI)
110074

ooy drey,
‘Jwoerg xog
504 ¥y

‘pey dog, e w1

‘pey dog,
SIPI
‘maue]
w0dfy Apog

JIIEL], 50Joy I00]] sTHICAN [29) 10] SUO et} ooty

SHAOAL DTN J0 jeounaeda ‘WISHOOT] JO MMOL

19T 1Y



8¢

BSOG-RL5-0Ly - TT= 0LST—6TF~0LS seuordsia],

- aeToedsiIoroedsy :SSRIPpE TR

0L6LL  ¥d ¥IvID -Is-diZ/amgiAnn

881l Xod od 58aIppY

‘ONI SNINOIOVANNYA ¥OIDEIS  AUBCIOD

gLog-s1-g 9EQ

\% :eingeudig
{ fomssmmgma

Fandxnzda) a7
e T

QCEI\FHC =)
ueBy pezHony £q papiuqng

‘Aynua [eFs] 930 20

uonzodion ‘uuy ‘uoszed AUE U3im UDIS|00 Io uonEIad00d ‘TORSUNtoT Ul IO AUIO] SPEW 30U 8t
PIG S11 JR; $2018E 1UMIT 10DPIg SABD (1 1589] 18 10] U 9q [[EYS 9911d PIg PUE S{USWINGAp PIg
203 U PIYUUIPT $534PPR A1 0F O £1A1ap appoul (1eys 2o1xd Iy jBY) SPUBISIBPUR JAPPIY
"HIBIAY 13i0} 398 SUOWIPUGD pue SWIIY 2y} 0} $a3iSe pum suomwoyIoads € ISppIq 03 UopOLSU
3y} ‘ssnoop [esodosd prg s pest sey Isppigl Jo FleYeq 1O SYs/AY ey $2915e paudisiepun sy

Justa)iedaq SO A, S1GDJ SY} [IIM JO[IRI) AST 9T JOF 9P ATRANSD

o s[payosald jsnur zeppig arnysdirely MON “NOSOOH ‘PROY 10AT 3S3M 017 MO 2Nang
40 3uunIRdaC U} 0} J3[1e1) 913 JRANSP 0} SABD 07| €Y 1SPPHE UL ‘WHTIVYL O ANTAT THad

11-91# p1d

S¥VYTIO0 ANYSNORL HagHl ALKIS g
SPIOM T 801

AHIVEL WOLLOE FATT VELOHAS 6661 40 NI SAVILL HAATANI OL 9074

VUUVTET o samrg uy
H{AraAT[eD SuipnioTt) fafrel ], as1yey J00L] SUD[R M 10215 (1) oUs 10 2015

WHOL TYSCdOMd @1d




6¢

H3ANE

peERpE]

BNOILLD

HYH T 931N NG ‘Suvd W3YIds

£7296-088 AVHD ALVIS LN

LX80L- ML 'SISOH AMNVLIAH

NYMLIW B2L-28-0015 (17 36NSSTds B8 L-65-00LG (1) SONILLIZ STINYEaAH

MOOH MOLA UZHEN QHvaNYLS Hadrng

NOISNISNS S0 W3 5 LNOYS OavaNYLS Bl

PR BT LHDN

319D NI SLHON Yvad a3 BLHTN

¥N HAYYD 3L

AT ANTTIOH 2730 DNIONYS

W6 QYONYLS  LHEIEH 133HM HLdid

Nic DN B8 ¥ NO WIE i SN

WM LA EY2a0 i

QvIHdS - H/SDNIES SvFT E00£5H0 HOLNH NOISNIISNS

A LG22 LL E20AK YRYHONOA ‘St

081013318 88373ANL 528 X 528 oGS

SWIda Qdv0aLN0 'O3.L07Id BNk Z10H 01 Lg13IHA
M3LIAS v S9Y MIZSk

SUILSOrOY HIVIS OOV M EIY 12 X42/1-91 BINTEE

ALIDYdYD #B00°52 “TTvAA WB/8 'ONNOCY WS dL SITY

HYED ONICHYT 0L v W3- 41 XL SISSVYHD

TALI YHSO WA LD

1A0 ' NI gvaHIng SHEAOY]

AAODHIA HSTW 217 o2 v TN 390v5 01 OY3HAING

50 IDRANENYNLAM 3AISE3AKT JIDNIH EO00 NevE FIVOTlVL

SHALNED oZ LD SHYIE- GOINOE F HIFHIN S5O0

PiLp-Lp# 90 T L SIS (006 02TV HOQT

‘aLs "SACOH vl

N 2dvl

AASLAD Mid YANYTT

v DNIOYHE o8

FENL TVENLOMALS 878 X8 X o ‘LSCd "vad

000e0Eas  HOV3 TvYLOL SYILMNEDFZ MO 30MYD 0LX.8 8180d 3013

UTYAINID VA LY 1 02 X.F 8a2 L v 0L FTONY

d3d3Aag LHOEYA IENL TVHMLOMHLS 71 % ub X 8 el JOL

IvdIDINAN LR CI2IA NI AB0005 WD 2L X001 BIS

a000a°Eas Fld 2O B 57 HLDNTT

13318 ‘HdAL 4308

001 SOEYADIBND OEN¢] ALLLNYTID
F219l¢ 14 3L0M0 HOOd DNINOW JOL NAJC 13318

3102/E L T3Lva TRINVHS Nyad LOVINGD

§1-51-6ATY HN LISHOOH 20 NAWDL YIAWCLIND

015Z-B2k-045
04821 wd HIVID NS
851 X08'0d

DN SN LD NN HO L34S



Staff Report

Title: 2016 Halloween Trick-or-Treat

September 28, 2016
Date: P

Background and Discussion of Issues

The Councit has motioned in past years for the Halloween trick-or-treat date
and time. Last year the Council set the date for October 31, 2015 from
6:00pm-8:00pm. This date and time is typically how Hooksett has celebrated
this event.

Police Chief Bartlett recommends this event be held on Sunday, October 30,
2016 6:00pm-8:00pm, since there is less traffic than on a work day. He also
suggests the Council direct him, as Chief of Police, to set this event annually.

Fire Chief Burkush has no concerns with whatever date and time is set for this
event.

Recommendation (including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Council motion to set 2016 Halloween trick-or-treat.

Fiscal Impact

None.

Donna Fitzpatick, Adminisirative Services Coordinator

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur




Staff Report

Title: 2016 Employee Appreciation Letter

September 28, 2016
Date: "

Background and Discussion of Issues

Annually the Town Council hosts an employee appreciation picnic. This
year's picnhic is on Friday, October 7, 2016. Town offices, with the exception
of emergency personnel, will be able to close for business at noon. From
12:00pm-1:30pm employees will gather in the Town Hall gymnasium for a
picnic luncheon and to enter into a raffle drawing for a chance to win gift
cards.

To announce the above event, and more importantly to inform employees of
the Council's appreciation for all their hard work, the Council creates & signs
an employee appreciation letter that is delivered to each employee.

Recommendation {including suggested motion, if appropriate)

Council motion to approve the 2016 Employee Appreciation Letter as
presented.

Fiscal Impact

Donations & budgeted.

Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator

Prepared by:

Town Administrator Recommendation

Concur




